

City and County of San Francisco YOUTH COMMISSION

MINUTES

Monday, March 6, 2023 5:00 p.m.

IN-PERSON MEETING with REMOTE ACCESS

Members: Emily Nguyen (Chair, D11), Ewan Barker Plummer (Vice Chair, Mayoral), Steven Hum (Legislative Affairs Officer, Mayoral), Raven Shaw (Legislative Affairs Officer, Mayoral), Gabrielle Listana (Communications & Outreach Officer, D6), Astrid Utting (Communications & Outreach Officer, D8), Chloe Wong (D1), Allister Adair (D2), Maureen Loftus (D4), Hayden Miller (D5), Ann Anish (D7), Yoselin Colin (D9), Vanessa Pimentel (D10), Yena Im (Mayoral), Tyrone S. Hillman III (Mayoral).

Present: Emily Nguyen, Ewan Barker Plummer, Steven Hum, Raven Shaw, Gabrielle Listana, Astrid Utting, Chloe Wong, Allister Adair, Maureen Loftus, Hayden Miller, Ann Anish, Yoselin Colin, Vanessa Pimentel, Tyrone S. Hillman III.

Absent: Yena Im (excused).

Tardy: None.

The San Francisco Youth Commission met in-person with remote access, and provided public comment through teleconferencing, on March 6, 2023, with Chair Nguyen presiding.

1. Call to Order and Roll Call for Attendance

Chair Nguyen called the meeting to order at 5:05pm.

On the call of the roll:

Roll Call Attendance: 14 present, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong present Allister Adair present Maureen Loftus present



Hayden Miller present
Gabrielle Listana present
Ann Anish present
Astrid Utting present
Yoselin Colin present
Vanessa Pimentel present
Ewan Barker Plummer present
Steven Hum present
Raven Shaw present
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III present
Emily Nguyen present

A quorum of the Commission was present.

Commissioner Hillman, seconded by Vice Chair Barker Plummer, motioned to excuse Commissioner Im. The motion was carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 12 ayes, 2 nays, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair nay
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller nay
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absen
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Commissioner Im's absence excused, with Commissioners Adair and Miller in the dissent.

2. Communications



Alondra Esquivel Garcia, Director of the SFYC, shared communications and meeting announcements with Commissioners.

3. Approval of Agenda (Action Item)

No discussion, and no public comment.

Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner Anish, motioned to approve the March 6, 2023 full Youth Commission meeting agenda. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Agenda Approved.

4. Approval of Minutes (Action Item)

a. February 21, 2023 (Packet Materials)

No discussion. No public comment.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Officer Utting, motioned to approve the February 21, 2023 full Youth Commission meeting minutes. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.



Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Minutes Approved.

5. Public Comment on matters not on Today's Agenda (2 minutes per comment)

No public comment.

6. Presentations

- a. Department of Public Health (discussion and possible action)
 - i. Presenter: Emily Gibbs, Deputy Finance Director

Director Gibbs gave their budget presentation. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked which funding is likely to be reduced, to which Director Gibbs responded by saying that they do not plan to reduce funding for any services since the City will continue funding these programs. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked about the situation regarding Laguna Honda, to which Director Gibbs summarized the ongoing situation with the hospitals to remain certified by the federal government. Commissioner Miller asked about what the timeline looks like with the wellness hubs that DPH is proposing, to which Director Gibbs said that that understanding is ongoing and they're working with the Mayor's Office.

- b. Department of Children, Youth, and Families (discussion and possible action)
 - i. Presenter: Maria Su, Director



Director Su gave their budget presentation. Commissioner Miller asked how they monitor the quality and performance of the organizations that they work with, to which Director Su said that they have a three-year plan implemented into their charter, with highlighted goals, expected outcomes, and a community needs assessment, which then is converted into the request from the budget that they need to meet the needs of the community. Commissioner Miller asked what programs they currently see that they'd like to push forward but are struggling to due to funding, to which Director Su said that the fundraising for their 'Summer Together' programming has been difficult, so they'll have to reduce the scope of their programs. This specific program is a collaboration between DCYF, SFUSD, and other community-based organizations. Chair Nguyen asked how they've fundraised in previous years, to which Director Su said that in pre-pandemic years they used to have roundtable fundraising efforts between organizations, and that they've been having difficulty due to city budget woes and reorganization in different citywide programs. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked how broad DCYF considers funding to ensure that schools can function, to which Director Su said that they work directly with SFUSD district leadership, and that they're working to determine what's necessary at each school site to better allocate that funding to reduce equity gaps. Vice Chair Barker Plummer mentioned the efforts around school safety, and Director Su said that they're doing their best to move forward with the funding they have while waiting for additional funding. Officer Utting asked for more details regarding their school safety measures, to which Director Su said that they are working to identify school sites that pose higher priorities for the district to focus on, and match the applicable services to support students. Officer Utting asked how many students won't be served due to fundraising woes and how they'll expand those efforts, to which Director Su said that they aren't sure as of now, but that they've served over 20,000 students in previous years. Chair Nguyen asked about how organizations are held accountable in regards to the Youth Empowerment Fund (YEF), to which Director Su said that organizations are required to input their fiscal & programmatic data.

c. CASA (Court Appointed Special Advocates) (discussion and possible action)

Presenters: Marta Rivas Crespin, SF CASA Youth Advisory Board;
 Wellington Smith Jr., SF CASA Youth Advisory Board; Theodara Liebhart,
 SF CASA TAY Coordinator & Case Supervisor; Kate Durham, SF CASA
 Executive Director

The presenters gave their budget presentation. Commissioner Adair asked about what strategies they use to let youth know about the services and programs that they offer to incarcerated youth, to which Supervisor Liebhart said that they work with youth's parole officers to communicate this information to youth. Chair



Nguyen asked where they primarily get their funding, to which Director Durham said they receive funding from individual donations, foundations, and other various organizations. Commissioner Miller asked what department they're requesting to fund their initiatives, to which Director Durham said they are alongside funding from other city departments, but that haven't really seen an increase in funding with how the program has grown. Chair Nguyen asked how the Youth Commission can best advocate for this funding, to which Director Durham said that they are going to try their best to get additional city funding. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked for clarification on how they will go about getting this funding, to which Director Durham said they're working both the grant application process and set-aside process at the BOS level.

Chair Nguyen called for a brief 5-minute recess at 6:18pm. Chair Nguyen called the meeting back to order at 6:24pm.

d. San Francisco Rising (discussion and possible action)

i. Presenter: Celi Tamayo-Lee, Co-Director; Jacob Mata, Field Organizer

Co-Director Tamayo-Lee gave their budget presentation. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked for the assurance of the differences between both the 501(c)3 and 501(c)4 parts of the organization due to some concerns of overlap, to which Co-Director Tamayo-Lee said there are two separate organizations. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked what their outreach looks like in terms of how youth are able to be engaged and the voter registration process, to which they said that they focus on ensuring young people vote and participate in the electoral process. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked for a clarification regarding the advocacy around the redistricting process if that was the 501(c)3 and 501(c)4 organization, to which Co-Director Tamayo-Lee said it was the 501(c)3. Chair Nguyen asked how the classroom presentations go about and how SF Rising does outreach, to which they said they invest in paid internships. Commissioner Miller asked where SF Rising gets its funding, to which the Co-Director Tamayo-Lee said that it gets funding from both individual donations and private foundations. Commissioner Adair asked what goes into their assessment into what budgetary items would need to be adjusted based on the city's budget shortfall, to which Co-Director Tamayo-Lee said that it'll be a process they have to go through to select their priorities. Officer Utting asked more about what the internship program entails, to which Mata said it includes teaching youth how to facilitate conversations, voter registration outreach, and other helpful processes.

No public comment.



- 7. **Resolutions** (discussion and action item)
 - a. Youth Clipper BART Resolution (second reading and possible action)
 - i. Commissioner Adair

Commissioner Adair read the resolution aloud, and highlighted the changes in the final version of the resolution. Vice Chair Barker Plummer stated he would like to strike the third-to-last clause, since he believes that asking for free BART service for youth isn't fiscally realistic at this time. Commissioner Adair said that there should be free BART for youth in the long term, even if it's not feasible at this time. Commissioner Miller said that while free BART for youth may not happen anytime soon, it's efforts like these that can build foundational building blocks for future leaders to accomplish. Vice Chair Barker Plummer said that Free Muni for All Youth is different because its city funding can be taken out of the general fund, to which Commissioner Miller said that BART could sell fares to the City with the intent of giving those passes to youth. Officer Utting agrees with Vice Chair Barker Plummer that this portion of the resolution be removed. Chair Nguyen supports leaving this clause in the resolution, especially since it shows the Commission's bold stance on supporting transit, and showing exactly what it wants. Commissioner Adair acknowledged Vice Chair Barker Plummer's concerns, but he would not support removing the clause. Officer Hum wanted to emphasize that this resolution specifies that this is the current stance of the 2022/2023 Youth Commission. Commissioner Miller referenced his visit to the Boys and Girls Club in the Tenderloin Clubhouse, and that youth brought up the need for a more affordable BART system. Officer Utting brought up the fact that youth should have a reliable system first, to which Chair Nguyen said that BART will not realistically sacrifice service to have free BART for youth. Vice Chair Barker Plummer emphasized that he will still support the resolution since the majority of it he agrees with, despite not agreeing to that specific clause.

No public comment.

Commissioner Adair, seconded by Commissioner Wong, motioned to approve the resolution. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Roll Call Vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye



Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Resolution approved.

- **b.** AB 800 Resolution (first reading and possible action)
 - i. Vice Chair Barker Plummer and Commissioner Pimentel

Vice Chair Barker Plummer introduced the resolution and the reason they're bringing it forward. Officer Utting said she believes that it would be a great idea to see what the City can do to push forward itself, in addition to waiting for the state to pass this legislation. Commissioner Miller acknowledges that there can't be changed since it's a state bill, but that he thinks that this should be taught earlier since youth can work as young as 14 years old.

No public comment.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Officer Utting, motioned to approve this resolution, with the amendment to change the title from "2023" to "2023/2024". The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Roll Call Vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye



Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Resolution approved.

Chair Nguyen called for a brief 10-minute recess at 7:24pm. Chair Nguyen called the meeting back to order at 7:34pm.

Chair Nguyen, seconded by Vice Chair Barker Plummer, motioned to suspend Article IX, Section C of the Bylaws, and approve this resolution, with the amendment to change the title from "2023" to "2023/2024". The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Resolution approved.

8. 29 Sunset Improvement Project (discussion and action item)

a. Presenter: Commissioner Miller and YC Staff



Commissioner Miller read the motion language aloud. Officer Utting stated she would like to be added as a co-sponsor.

No public comment.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer, seconded by Chair Nguyen, motioned to suspend Article IX, Section C of the Bylaws, and approve this resolution. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: Resolution approved.

9. 2023-2024 Budget and Policy Priorities (second reading and action item)

a. Presenter: Youth Commission

No public comment.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Officer Utting, motioned to approve (BPP 1) Expand Access to Youth-Centered Recreational Spaces. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye



Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Barker Plummer, seconded by Commissioner Miller, motioned to approve (BPP 2) Address Vision Zero. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.



Officer Utting, seconded by Commissioner Colin, motioned to approve (BPP 3) Make Transportation Services Accessible and Reliable for Youth. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Commissioner Hillman, motioned to approve (BPP 4) Support Youth and Transitional-Aged Youth Experiencing Homelessness, with grammatical amendments. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye



Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Commissioner Miller, motioned to approve (BPP 5) Study the Removal of the Central Freeway. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Miller, seconded by Officer Shaw, motioned to approve (BPP 6) Make Free Muni for All Youth Permanent. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Maureen Loftus aye



Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Officer Shaw, seconded by Commissioner Hillman, motioned to approve (BPP 7) Alternatives to Youth and Transitional-Aged Youth Incarceration. Commissioner Colin stated the slight title change to reflect the language in the BPP. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.



Officer Utting, seconded by Commissioner Miller, motioned to approve (BPP 8) Expand Harm Reduction Measures for Youth Drug Use by Funding a Narcan Program in All San Francisco Schools. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Commissioner Miller, motioned to approve (BPP 9) Urging San Francisco to Take Immediate Action in Restoring Bayview Hunters Point. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye



Raven Shaw aye Yena Im absent Tyrone S. Hillman III aye Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Chair Nguyen, motioned to approve (BPP 10) Provide Oversight of and Investment in School Safety Measures for San Francisco Students. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Officer Hum, seconded by Commissioner Colin, motioned to approve (BPP 11) Grant 16 and 17-Year-Olds the Right to Vote. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye



Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Commissioner Wong, motioned to approve (BPP 12) Increase Existing Funding for Wellness Centers in San Francisco Public Schools. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

On (BPP 13) Support the Continuance of Funding for Youth Employment and Life Skills Preparation Programs in San Francisco, Commissioner Miller asked if the recommendations could include more information, such as the pathways program. Chair



Nguyen echoed the same concerns, in addition to other programs that exist within the City, and said that there should be more data included. Officer Utting said the same as others, and said there should be further information about how it's relevant to San Francisco.

Commissioner Miller, seconded by Chair Nguyen, motions to table (BPP 13) Support the Continuance of Funding for Youth Employment and Life Skills Preparation Programs in San Francisco indefinitely. No public comment. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Roll call vote: 10 ayes, 4 nays, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus nay
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel nay
Ewan Barker Plummer nay
Steven Hum nay
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP tabled indefinitely, with Commissioners Loftus, Pimentel, Barker Plummer, and Hum in dissent.

Commissioner Miller, seconded by Vice Chair Barker Plummer, motioned to approve (BPP 14) Increase Voter Preregistration Efforts. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye



Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Officer Utting, seconded by Officer Listana, motioned to approve (BPP 15) San Francisco LGBTQIA+ Coalition on Safety Funding Request. Commissioner Miller asked for clarification regarding the recommendation, since staff need to put the correct number on there. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Officer Listana, seconded by Vice Chair Barker Plummer, motioned to approve (BPP 16) Create a More Comprehensive LGBTQ+ and Sexual Health Curriculum for SFUSD



Schools, with a language amendment in the recommendations to change "many" to "none". Commissioner Miller brought up that some schools do have health educators, and that it would otherwise be factually incorrect. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Commissioner Hillman, motioned to approve (BPP 17) Establish Safe Spaces in Schools and Make Resources for LGBTQ+ Students More Accessible. No public comment. The motion carried by the following voice vote:

Voice vote: 14 ayes, 1 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting aye
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye



Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Yena Im absent
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye
Emily Nguyen aye

Action: BPP approved.

10. Committee Reports (discussion item)

a. Executive Committee

i. Legislative Affairs Officers

Officer Shaw said that they're focusing on preparing the full Commission on the budget presentation to the Board of Supervisors on the 2023/2024 Budget and Policy Priorities. Officer Shaw asked for Commissioners to request any legislation that they would like referred. Officer Shaw also congratulated those who wrote the two newly-passed resolutions, and to fill out the Google Form if they'd like to submit any interest in working on resolutions that others are working on. Officer Hum has nothing to add.

ii. Communication and Outreach Officers

Officer Listana said that they're going to be working on public notices for Commission meetings, coordinating takeovers for those who haven't done so already, and they're working on social media posts for updates and events across the City. Officer Utting said that they've sent out a Google Form for educators who want the Youth Commission to present to their classrooms, but they will give updates soon.

iii. General Committee Updates

Vice Chair Barker Plummer discussed updates regarding the BOS budget presentation, the Youth Budget Town Hall that will be coming up in April, and the beginnings for 2023/2024 Youth Commission recruitment. Chair Nguyen added that those who will be presenting to the BOS budget should look over the information.

Housing, Recreation, and Transit Committee

Commissioner Miller said that at the last meeting, SFMTA presented on the 29 Sunset Improvement Project and they worked on amending some language for



the Youth BART Clipper resolution. Commissioners also attended the District 7 Transit Town Hall with Supervisor Melgar, which they thought was an interesting town hall to hear from government officials. Chair Nguyen added her participation on the Central Freeway removal forum went well.

c. Civic Engagement and Education Committee

Commissioner Loftus said that they went over the BPPs and the CEEC survey feedback.

d. Transformative Justice Committee

Commissioner Colin said they finished the BPPs, and had a conversation about what they'd like to work on for the remaining months on the Commission.

e. LGBTQ+ Task Force

Officer Listana said they haven't met since the last full Commission meeting, but they worked on the final BPPs.

No public comment.

11. Roll Call and Introductions (discussion item)

 a. Presenters: Commissioner Anish, Commissioner Utting, Commissioner Miller, Commissioner Hum, Commissioner Adair, Commissioner Shaw, Commissioner Nguyen, Commissioner Loftus

Commissioner Anish said that she has been continuing her research on the open spaces resolution from her last update.

Commissioner Utting has been working on school safety language with Vice Chair Barker Plummer, and she hopes that it will turn into a resolution that they can then advocate for the furthering of their goal.

Commissioner Miller went to the Tenderloin Boys and Girls Club recently, and looks forward to future visits to organizations. He also said he attended a meeting regarding McLaren Park and its future, and hopes to introduce a resolution in the future.

Commissioner Hum said he's hoping to get back to working on the Mental Health resolution.



Commissioner Adair said he's been working on the Youth BART Clipper resolution, and is looking forward to working on another resolution regarding housing.

Commissioner Shaw said she's been working to do her role as Legislative Affairs Officer and supporting the Executive Committee, and is working on a potential issue with Commissioner Hillman.

Commissioner Nguyen has been working on the final BPP document and taking part in the Central Freeway panel, and is now looking forward to helping others complete their projects and coming up with new projects of her own. She's also working on the Chair's letter in the BPP document, but it might take some time.

Commissioner Loftus said that she's been recovering, so she hasn't been able to do much, but is excited to get back to work at the next full Youth Commission meeting.

b. Other Legislative Introductions

No other legislative introductions.

No public comment.

12. Staff Report (discussion item)

Director Esquivel Garcia has no report. Specialist Zhan is designing the BPP booklet and is asking commissioners for feedback, and she sent the Transit Stop Accessibility and Combating Fentanyl Use resolutions to all of the BOS offices, but to reach out to Officers Shaw and Hum. Specialist Ochoa is working on creating a Google Form for feedback after the Youth Budget Town Hall, putting together a document for community organizations, working with the Comms team on flyers and social media efforts, and presenting the YC's BPPs to the Youth Allies in Government later this month.

Commissioner Miller asked if the attendance can be updated and sent to all of the Commissioners, to which Director Garcia agreed and said it would be sent out soon.

No public comment.

13. Announcements (this includes Community Events)



Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked for 30 seconds after the meeting is over so he can record his Instagram takeover video. Specialist Zhan said she will be sending out information in an email to Commissioners about the Jewish Contemporary Museum event in the coming weeks. Officer Utting announced that there is a District 8 Public Safety Town Hall that will be taking place on Friday, March 10th at 5:30pm at the Upper Noe Valley Recreation Center. Specialist Ochoa announced that the Juvenile Probation Commission will be meeting on Wednesday, March 8th at 5:30pm and DA Jenkins will be in attendance. Ochoa also announced that there's two SF Marina Project community forums, and to check out the details on the calendar invite that was sent out earlier. Specialist Zhan announced that there will be a test run of the BPP presentation to the BOS, at the Executive Committee meeting on March 15th, so all presenters should be there to attend that meeting.

No public comment.

14. Adjournment

There being no further business on the agenda, the full Youth Commission adjourned at 8:49pm.